-

\_

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 19th October, 2016

10.00 am

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

~

Council

kent.gov.uk







AGENDA

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 19th October, 2016, at 10.00 Ask for: Andrew Tait
am
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Telephone: 03000 416749
Hall, Maidstone
Tea/Coffee will be available from 9:30 outside the meeting room
Membership (19)
Conservative (10): MrJ A Davies (Chairman), Mr CP Smith  (Vice-Chairman),
Mr M J Angell, Mr D L Brazier, MrNJ D Chard, Mr S C Manion,
Mr R J Parry, Mr C Simkins, Mrs P AV Stockell and
Mr J N Wedgbury
UKIP (4) Mr M Baldock, Mr L Burgess, Mr T L Shonk and Mr A Terry
Labour (3) Mrs P Brivio, Mr T A Maddison and Mrs E D Rowbotham
Liberal Democrat (1):  Mr 1S Chittenden

Independents (1) Mr P M Harman

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public

A. COMMITTEE BUSINESS

1. Substitutes
Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.

Minutes - 14 September 2016 (Pages 5 - 10)

> W DN

Revised dates of meetings in 2017

Wednesday, 18 January 2017
Wednesday, 8 February 2017
Wednesday, 15 March 2017
Wednesday, 19 April 2017

Please note that the February and April dates have changed.

5.  Site Meetings and Other Meetings
B. GENERAL MATTERS

1.  General Matters

C. MINERALS AND WASTE DISPOSAL APPLICATIONS




D. DEVELOPMENTS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL

1.  Proposal CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016) - Infill classroom extension to provide
the school with an intervention space at Swalecliffe Junior School, Bridgefield
Road, Whitstable; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support (Pages 11 - 24)

2. Proposal SW/16/504626 (KCC/SW/0095/2016) - Two and three storey buildings
and new access and parking area for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne
Community College, Swanstree Avenue, Sittingbourne; KCC Property and
Infrastructure Support (Pages 25 - 50)

E. COUNTY MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

1. County matter applications (Pages 51 - 56)
2.  County Council developments

3.  Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2011

4.  Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2011 (None)

F. OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
Interim General Counsel
03000 416814

Tuesday, 11 October 2016

(Please note that the background documents referred to in the accompanying papers may
be inspected by arrangement with the Departments responsible for preparing the report.
Draft conditions concerning applications being recommended for permission, reported in
section D, are available to Members in the Members’ Lounge.)



36.

37.

38.

Agenda Item A3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 14
September 2016.

PRESENT: MrJA Davies (Chairman), Mr CP Smith (Vice-Chairman),
Mr M J Angell, Mr M Baldock, Mrs P Brivio, Mr D L Brazier, Mr L Burgess,
Mr | S Chittenden, Mr P M Harman, Mr M Heale (Substitute for Mr T L Shonk),
Mr T A Maddison, Mr S C Manion, Mr R J Parry, Mrs E D Rowbotham,
Mr C Simkins, Mr A Terry and Mr J N Wedgbury

ALSO PRESENT: Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Ms D Marsh and Mr B J Sweetland

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group),
Mr P Hopkins (Principal Planning Officer), Mrs A Hopkins (Principal Planning
Officer), Mrs H Edwards (Planning Officer), Mr D Joyner (Transport & Safety
Policy Manager), Mr A Pigott (Strategic Transport and Development Planner) and
Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

Minutes - 13 July 2016
(Item A3)

(1) The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee that the
discussions on transport and access arrangements at Seal CE Primary School
(Minute 2016/33) had not yet concluded.

(2) RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2016 are
correctly recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

Site Meetings and Other Meetings
(Item A4)

(1) The Committee agreed to undertake a site visit to Wilmington in respect of
the major expansion planning applications at Wilmington Girls Grammar School
and Wilmington Academy.

Dates of meetings in early 2017
(Item A5)

The Committee noted the following meeting dates in early 2017:-

Wednesday, 18 January 2017,
Wednesday, 15 February 2017,

Wednesday, 15 March 2017; and
Page 5



39.

Wednesday, 12 April 2017.

Application GR/15/1192 (KCC/GR/0387/2015) - Improvement and
enhancement of existing waste transfer site by erection of a
replacement building to provide covered working area and ancillary
site improvements together with retrospective provision for trommel,
picking station and wall at Unit 4, Apex Business Park, Queen's Farm
Road, Shorne; R S Skips Ltd

(Item C1)

(1) The Chairman informed the Committee that he was acquainted with one of
the supporters of the application.  This did not constitute an Other Significant
Interest as this was not a close personal relationship and he had never discussed
the application with him. He was therefore able to determine the application with a
fresh mind.

(2) Mr T A Maddison informed the Committee that he had visited the site at the
request of the former Local Member, Ms C J Cribbon. He had briefly met the
applicant during the visit but had not entered into any discussion with him about the
application. He was therefore able to determine the application with a fresh mind.

(3) The Head of Planning Applications Group advised that the recommended
hours of operation should be amended to 0700 to 1330 on Saturdays. She also
corrected the references to report paragraphs by explaining that the noise levels
condition referred to paragraph 81 and the vibration condition to paragraph 83 of the
report. The figure given for noise rating levels from the site at Queen’s Farm House
in the latter paragraph should read 42 DB Lamax.

(4) The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee of
representations from the owners of the Apex Business Park stating that there was a
restrictive covenant which restricted the overall number of vehicle movements
leaving the site. She advised that this was not a material planning consideration
and was a matter for discussion between the owners and the tenants. She advised
that the Committee could not consider this matter when determining the application.

(5) Mr B J Sweetland and Ms D Marsh were present for this item pursuant to
Committee Procedure Rule 2.27 and spoke.

(6) Mr Leslie Hills (Local Borough ClIr), Mr Robin Theobald (Shorne PC) and Mr
John Grey (Higham PC) addressed the Committee in opposition to the application.
Ms Angela Watts - SLR Consulting spoke in reply on behalf of the applicants.

(7)  Mr T A Maddison moved, seconded by Mrs P Brivio that consideration of this
application be deferred pending a Members’ site visit.
Carried 8 votes to 7

(8) RESOLVED that consideration of this application be deferred pending a
Members’ site visit.

Page 6



40.

41.

Proposal DA/16/00800/CPO (KCC/DA/0091/2016) - Relocation of existing
temporary classroom to the front of the school from the rear at
Wilmington Grammar School for Girls, Parsonage Lane, Wilmington;
KCC Property and Infrastructure Support

(Item D1)

(2) Mr T A Maddison informed the Committee that he was acquainted with a
number of the local residents who had commented on the application. This did not
constitute an Other Significant Interest as none of these was of a close personal
nature. He was therefore able to determine the application with a fresh mind.

(2) Mrs A D Allen was present for this item pursuant to Committee Procedure
Rule 2.27 and spoke.

3) Ms Jenny Wright (Wilmington Safer Streets) and Mr Brian Garden
(Wilmington PC) addressed the Committee in opposition to the application. Mr lan
Watts (Kent Property and Infrastructure Support) and Mr Simon Moon (DHA
Planning) spoke in reply on behalf of the applicants.

(4) The Head of Planning Applications Group agreed to a request from the
Committee to incorporate a requirement for hard surfacing of the parking area in her
recommendations.

(5)  On being put to the vote, the recommendations of the Head of Planning
Applications Group were agreed by 14 votes to 1 with 1 abstention.

(6) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions,
including conditions covering the temporary building being removed from the
site on or before 1 September 2018 and the existing parking spaces
reinstated; the development being carried out in accordance with the
permitted details; the 10 replacement and 2 additional parking spaces to
the south of Parsons Lane being laid out with pegs or other permanent
marking prior to the occupation of the relocated temporary classroom, in
accordance with drawing number 11231 T-08 Rev P2, being provided on
hard surfacing and being retained for the period of its siting; and construction
traffic and deliveries to the site being restricted to hours outside of peak
school times (prior to 8 am and after 9 am, and prior to 3 pm and after 4 pm).

Proposal DA/16/00799 (KCC/DA/0088/2016) - Three temporary
classrooms and associated access improvements to accommodate the
2016/17 allocation of pupils at Wilmington Academy, Common Lane,
Wilmington ; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support

(Item D2)

(1) Mr T A Maddison informed the Committee that he was acquainted with a
number of the local residents who had commented on the application. This did not
constitute an Other Significant Interest as none of these was of a close personal
nature. He was therefore able to determine the application with a fresh mind.

Page 7



(2)  The Head of Planning Applications Group tabled a revised recommendation to
grant permission subject to receipt of a written commitment from Wilmington
Academy and Wilmington Grammar School for Boys regarding the implementation
and ongoing operation of the mitigation measures set out in the application. The
recommended footpath condition was also amended to take account of the
Academy’s opening hours and that it could only be used by local secondary school
pupils. These amendments were accepted by the Committee.

(2) Mrs A D Allen was present for this item pursuant to Committee Procedure
Rule 2.27 and spoke.

(3) Ms Stacey Brown (Wilmington Safer Streets) and Mr Brian Garden
(Wilmington PC) addressed the Committee in opposition to the application. Mr lan
Watts (Kent Property and Infrastructure Support) and Mr Simon Moon (DHA
Planning) spoke in reply on behalf of the applicants.

(4)  On being put to the vote, the recommendations of the Head of Planning
Applications Group were agreed by 12 votes to 3 with 1 abstention.

RESOLVED that:-

(@) permission be granted to the proposal subject to the receipt of a
written commitment from Wilmington Academy and Wilmington
Grammar School for Boys regarding the implementation and ongoing
implementation of the mitigation measures set out in the application
and to conditions, including conditions covering the development being
carried out in accordance with the permitted details; the modular
buildings being removed from the site and the land being reinstated as
playing field on or before 1 September 2017; the submission and
approval of the colour finish of the modular buildings; all highway
mitigation (footway widening on Common Lane, provision of on-
site footpath link, surfacing of PROW DR118A, and two on-site bus
parking bays) being completed and operational prior to first
use/occupation of the modular buildings; the on-site footpath link
being open and available to all local secondary pupils during the
peak hours in the morning and afternoon on Mondays to Fridays
during term time; the on-site drop-off/pick-up area being available
for use during the morning and afternoon peak times on Mondays
to Fridays during term time and being supervised by a member of
staff; the Academy implementing and monitoring all of the Travel
Plan initiatives and reviewing them where necessary; the
development being undertaken in accordance with the
recommendations and precautionary measures set out within the
Ecological Assessment; the development being undertaken outside
of the bird breeding season (March to August) unless supervised by
an experienced ecologist; the provision of ecological enhancements;
and the submission and approval of a Construction Management
Strategy, including details of the methods and hours of working,
location of any required site compounds and operative/visitors parking,
details of any required lorry waiting facilities, details of the
construction access, and details of how the site access would be
managed to avoid conflict with peak school times and traffic

Page 8



42,

(b)

associated with local schools; and

the applicant be advised by informative that:-

()

(ii)

their attention is drawn to the letter from Public Rights of
Way which contains general information regarding works
adjacent to and/or on a Public Right of Way. The granting of
planning permission confers on the developer no other
permission or consent or right to close or divert any Public
Right of Way at any time without the express permission of the
Highways Authority; and

their attention is drawn to the letter from Highways and
Transportation in which it is noted that it is the
responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all necessary
highway approvals and consents are obtained and that the
limits of the highway boundary are clearly established in order
to avoid any enforcement action being taken by the Highway
Authority. The applicant must also ensure that the details
shown on the approved plans agree in every respect with
those approved under such legislation and common law. It is
therefore important for the applicant to contact KCC Highways
and Transportation to progress this aspect of the works prior to

commencement.

Proposal SE/16/1480 (KCC/SE/0047/2016) -Expansion of school from
2FE to 3FE at Hextable Primary School, Rowhill Road, Hextable; KCC
Property and Infrastructure Support

(Item D3)

RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions,
including conditions covering the standard 5 year time limit; the development
being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; the submission of
details of all materials to be used externally; a scheme of soft and hard
landscaping and its implementation and maintenance; measures to protect
those trees to be retained; no tree removal taking place during the bird breeding
season; the submission and implementation of a detailed method statement
to avoid and/or reduce the potential for impacts to reptiles and breeding birds;
measures to minimise the potential for impacts to mammals including
hedgehogs, as recommended in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report;
details of any external lighting to be provided; the provision and permanent
retention of the new drop-off parking area prior to the occupation of the
proposed development; visibility splays being provided and maintained as
approved; hours of working during construction being restricted to between the
hours of 0800 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 0900
and 1300 on Saturdays, with no operations on Sundays and Bank Holidays;
measures to prevent mud and debris being taken onto the public highway; the
submission of a construction management plan, including lorry routing, access,
parking and circulation within the site for contractors and other vehicles
related to construction operations; the retention of school crossing facilities
across Rowhill Road; the submission of a revised School Travel Plan, within 3
months of the occupation of the new buildings, via the Jambusters website, its

Page 9



43.

placement on the school's website and its annual review; and a Community
Use Agreement relating to the Multi Use Games Area, including hours of use.

Matters dealt with under delegated powers

(Item E1)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last
meeting relating to:-

(@)
(b)
(©)

(d)

County matter applications;
County Council developments;

Screening Opinions under the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011; and

Scoping Opinions under the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.

Page 10



Agenda Item D1
SECTION D
DEVELOPMENT TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL

Background Documents: the deposited documents; views and representations received as
referred to in the reports and included in the development proposals dossier for each case;
and other documents as might be additionally indicated.

Item D1
Infill classroom extension to provide an intervention space
at Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable - CA/16/1822
(KCC/CA/0191/2016)

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 19"
October 2016.

Application by Kent County Council Property and Infrastructure for an infill classroom
extension to provide an intervention space at Swalecliffe Junior School, Bridgefield Road,
Whitstable, Kent — CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

Recommendation: Permission be granted subject to conditions.

Local Member: Mr Michael Harrison Classification: Unrestricted

Site

1. Swalecliffe Junior School is situated within the residential area of Swalecliffe in
Whitstable, to the east of Whitstable town centre. The application site is bounded by
Southwood Road to the west, Bridgefield Road to the north, Kemp Road to the east and
Swalecliffe Road to the south. Residential properties surround the site to the north,
south, east and west.

2. There are three points of access to the school via Bridgefield Road, two of which serve
as vehicular access for staff and deliveries to the infant school and the junior school
respectively, with the third designated as a pedestrian only access. There is also rear
site access off Swalecliffe Road to the south of the school site. There are no designated
parking facilities for parents or visitors on the school site and therefore parents and
visitors rely on street parking in the surrounding residential area. There is one disabled
space allocated for school use and an additional disabled space allocated within the
parking for the Surestart Children’s Centre which also lies within the school site. The
school playing field is located to the south of the site.

Background

3. Swalecliffe Community Primary School is a 3FE school, and caters for children from age
4-11. A bulge year was taken last year for the year 2 (now year 3) group. The school is
divided into 21 classes, 9 classes in the infant department and 12 in the junior
department. The school day runs from 08:45 am — 15:05 pm in the junior department
and 09:00 am — 15:00 pm in the infant department. The school has identified a need for
additional classroom space to allow an intervention group currently held in various other
spaces within the school to continue in to the next academic year. The current school
roll is 649 pupils and 89 teaching staff, both full time and part time. The proposed infill
extension would not result in any additional intake of staff or pupils.

Page 11 D1.1



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

General Location Plan

5] [Swalecllffe Community

Primary School ]

S WALECH o

—

AY

ﬂ (o> Superstore

IMetres

0 20 40 80 120 160

200

Page 12

© Crown Copyright and database right 2016.
Ordnance Survey 100019238

D1.2



Item D1
Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

Site Location Plan

Proposed infill extension

Legend SWALECIIFFE COMMUNITY PRIMARYSCHOOL | yerad R R S 0rporr
BRIDGEFIELD ROAD CountyHall, Maidstone

[_TKCC FREEHOLD SWALE CLIFFE KENME14 X0

- o, [Received- 11 July 2016 TekUBA 247247

Planning Applications Group
— UPRN m‘ Based o e Ordnance with e permissin

Drown By Date osn 2 Y 0 % @ Drowing No. ﬁrﬁgﬁ?“ s@%‘?oh

MTD FEB 2015 * oM TRIfﬁGﬂﬂ( mmhhuw’wmmmcmum

Page 13 D1.3



Item D1
Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

Existing and Proposed Floor Plan

ﬁ - Locatlon of ~ " n
- h Proposed Inhflil
Extension
‘\/‘t
015 / Interlocking Plastic Puthw\
Shed - ||
B | \
I' | :l
‘l' G.026 |
\ G016 |
—[,':
G.012
— |
9 G027 Smmenr
61084 :Wmmw,
Frri il
| " —
N2l L
v)."
v
New tarmac path P
WNMYMIWME: ;Nmél«{m
N[
Proposed
Intervention \
Space 6.026
] 68.5n2 |
G016 4‘_‘3—
- Y
S
M
G.021
- H o /# 4 G.025 G027
1 G019 o0 ;%6.024 J
' n

Page 14 D1.4



Item D1
Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

Proposed Elevations

34 %‘,

55 B
AEHEL N
;| ;
A E ;
AR T INR
% 1ens T lefit
ERHIHE

O ——
e
=
()
\‘_ ;
W
—/ >
.|_>
C n
S S
o L
<
& e
>
u‘] &
3 3
L (7]
o
<
<
o o
-'_?
o)) S
= =
- | e )
< L
o
’7 2 °
n W
] n
< O
1. [a
(o] (@]
] C
o
O
J
=
()
S _

Page 15 D1.5



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

4.

The school serves the local community of Swalecliffe, Chestfield, Tankerton and the
wider area of Whitstable. In recent years there has been fairly extensive building within
the local area. In addition there has been growth in the number of looked after children
in the area. A Surestart Children’s Centre and Nursery opened on the school site in
2009.

The junior block where the infill extension is proposed was constructed circa 1970 and is
of steel frame construction with a flat felt roof and cedar clad external walls with uPVC
double glazing.

Recent Site History

6. CA/08/78 Single storey modular building for use as a community Children's Centre,
including the installation of a canopy, external storage units, fencing, hard
surfacing, ramped pathway and extension of existing staff parking.
Granted planning permission.

CA/07/786  Replacement of glazed curtain walling to the junior block.

Granted planning permission.

CA/06/244  Replacement section of front boundary fence with a 2.4 metre maximum
height close boarded panel, concrete post and gravel board fence.
Granted planning permission.

CAJ/06/171  Provision of an equipment store externally to the Infant School.

Granted planning permission.

CA/05/1683 Replacement of steel frame windows with white uPVC double glazed

units.
Granted planning permission.

CAJ/05/534  Provision of an external canopy to the infant school.
Granted planning permission.

CA/04/1914 Replacement of glazed steel frame curtain walling with aluminium curtain
walling with glazed uPVC double glazed units.
Granted planning permission.

CA/03/500 Replacement of crittall windows in timber sub frames including integral
asbestos panels with uPVC double glazed units to the classroom known
as SW.

Granted planning permission.

Proposal

7. The current application is for a single storey infill extension to the south east of the junior

block utilising an underused courtyard area. The purpose of the infill extension is to

provide the school with an additional classroom to be used as an intervention space.

8. During the past academic year the school has held an intervention group in a variety of

spaces within the school including an outdoor science classroom, the junior library and

Page 16 D1.6



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

10.

11.

12.

the infant library. However these spaces are becoming less available as they are
needed for their originally intended purpose. In order for the intervention group to carry
on in to next year, the School are therefore proposing this infill classroom to provide the
necessary space.

The proposed extension would be approximately 6.50m (21.32ft) x 10.53m (34.55ft)
providing a total area of 68.5m2 (736.61sqft). The height of the building would be
approximately 3.65m (11.97ft) (to match the existing building). The proposed extension
would meet all current regulations and standards to facilitate the educational
requirements of the pupils who are to use it.

The proposed extension would be timber framed construction and be of a similar
appearance to the adjacent classrooms, with a flat felt roof (flush with adjacent), uPVC
fascia’s, cedar cladding and uPVC windows all to match the existing building as closely
as possible. The proposed new extension would be fully accessible with a level
threshold.

A new fire escape door would be provided on the south facing side of the extension. The
fire escape door serving the adjacent classroom is to be relocated to accommodaie the
infill extension. The fire exit door to the new intervention classroom and relocated fire
exit door to the adjacent classroom would both be served by exit ramps and a new
tarmac footpath to provide a fully accessible fire exit from the building.

It is proposed to use the access off Swalecliffe Road as the contractor’'s main point of
access including deliveries. All site compounds would be within the boundary of the site.
A banksman is proposed to be employed by the contractor to control the flow of site
traffic to and from the site. Times of such access would be stipulated in order to avoid
unnecessary congestion during peak school times. Parking within the site would remain
unchanged and unaffected by the proposed new extension. The operating hours of the
school would also remain unchanged.

Planning Policy

13.

The Government Guidance and Development Plan Policies most relevant to the
consideration of this application are summarised below:

(i) The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the National
Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) set out the Government’s planning policy
and guidance for England at the heart of which is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. The guidance is a material consideration for the
determination of planning applications but does not change the statutory status of the
development plan which remains the starting point for decision making. However the
weight given to development plan policies will depend on their consistency with the
NPPF (the closer the policies in the development plan to the policies in NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

In determining applications the NPPF states that local planning authorities should
look for solutions rather than problems, and decision-takers at every level should
seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible.

In terms of delivering sustainable development in relation to this development
proposal, the NPPF guidance and objectives covering the following matters are of

Page 17 D1.7



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

particular relevance:

- Achieving the requirement for high quality design and a good standard of amenity
for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings;

- The promotion of healthy communities; and

- The great importance that the Government attaches to ensuring that a sufficient
choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new
communities, and that great weight should be given to the need to create, expand
or alter schools.

(ii) Policy Statement — Planning for Schools Development (August 2011) sets out
the Government’s commitment to support the development of State-funded schools,
and their delivery through the planning system.

(iii) Canterbury District Local Plan First Review Adopted 2006:

Policy BE1

Policy BE3

Policy C9

Policy C11

Policy NE5

The City Council will expect proposals of high quality design which
respond to the objectives of sustainable development.

Design statements and/or Development Briefs shall be submitted with
planning applications setting out the principles used in the scheme to
relate the development with and to its context. This will apply to all
planning applications, where the development is visually significant or
is significant to its neighbours.

The City Council will apply Kent County Council’'s adopted Vehicle
Parking Standards to development proposals.

Proposals for new building or uses for local communities to provide
social infrastructure will be encouraged and granted planning
permission on the basis that any new building is appropriately
designed and located, and highway safety would not be prejudiced.

Development should be designed to retain trees, hedgerows,
woodland or other landscape features that make an important
contribution to the amenity of the site and the surrounding area and
which are important to wild flora and fauna. The City Council will
refuse planning permission for proposals that would threaten the future
retention of trees, hedgerows, woodland or other landscape features of
importance to the site’s character, an area’s amenity or the movement
of wildlife.

(iv) Canterbury District Local Plan Publication Draft 2014:

Policy SP1

States that when considering development proposals the Council will
take a positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of
sustainable development contained in the NPPF.

Policy EMP9 Sets out that the City Council will work with the Education Authority

and other school providers to ensure that provision is made for

Page 18 D1.8



Item D1
Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

educational needs arising from new development and that appropriate
mechanisms are secured through legal agreements to deliver this
provision.

Policy LB10 States that development should be designed to retain trees, hedgerow
and woodland that make an important contribution to the amenity of
the site and the surrounding area and which are important to wild flora
and fauna.

Consultations
14. Canterbury City Council raises no objection.

KCC Highways and Transportation Officer raises no objection.

Local Member

15. The local County Members Mr Harrison and Mr Dance were notified of the application
on 27 July 2016.

Publicity

16. The application was publicised by the posting of a site notice, and the natification of 11
neighbouring properties.

Representations

17. In response to the publicity, 3 letters of representation have been received objecting to
the proposal. The key points raised can be summarised as follows:

e Adverse impact on residential amenity.
The proposed extension and tarmac footpath would be closer to residential
boundaries resulting in additional noise and extra footfall to gardens adjacent to the
school.

e Concern over the loss of residential amenity with 2 high level windows on the
proposed extension overlooking gardens.

o Residential amenity affected by out of hours activities at the school and foul language
and damage caused to properties by children at the school.

e Building works on the site have commenced prior to the determination of the planning
application.

e Concern regarding the removal of a large tree on the proposed development site.

e The need for a new classroom to be used as an intervention space called in to
guestion as an empty classroom is currently being used for the same purpose.

e Concern that the school would take additional pupils with the availability of the new
classroom.

¢ Additional pupils at the school would exacerbate traffic and parking issues in the
surrounding residential area. A sensible traffic plan is required for the school to
alleviate issues of traffic and congestion.

e Concerned if the beech boundary hedge is not maintained there would be no
screening between the school and residential gardens.

e Concern over the capacity of the public drainage and water systems, particularly

Page 19 D1.9



Item D1
Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

removal of surface water exacerbated by the recent installation of an astro turf area.
o Would like the applicant to consider alternative sites that would be more sensitive to
residents.

Discussion

18. In considering this proposal regard must be had to the Development Plan Policies
outlined in paragraph 13 above. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act (2004) states that applications must be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore the
proposal needs to be considered in the context of the Development Plan Policies,
Government Guidance, including the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF),
Planning Policy Statement for Schools Development and other material planning
considerations arising from consultation and publicity.

19. This application is being reported for determination by the Planning Applications
Committee following the receipt of objections from 3 local residents. In my opinion the
main issues to consider are the need, siting and design of the extension, any impact on
residential amenity, traffic and transportation impacts, and other matters such as
construction management and the loss of trees.

Need

20. The applicant has identified a need to provide a dedicated classroom space to enable
an intervention group to continue. It is not proposed in order to accommodate an
additional class of pupils at school. However as a result of the school roll increasing last
year spaces previously used are now becoming less available for this purpose due to
demand for their intended purpose as referred to in paragraph (8) above. | therefore
accept that there is a need for the proposed accommodation to enable the school to
deliver the interventions the children need.

Siting and Design

21. The proposed infill extension would be sited on the south east side of the junior block
and has been designed to match that of the existing building, with timber cladding and a
flat felt roof. It would be of the same height as the existing building (approximately
3.65m/11.97ft), and the style and design of the doors and windows would also be in
keeping with the existing building. The extension would project beyond the existing
opening of the courtyard by between 2.3 metres (7.54ft) and 4.1 metres (13.54ft) and
would be within about 7 metres (22.96ft) of the school boundary line with neighbouring
properties. | note that the northern part of the existing building line on this side of the
school projects to about 5 metres (16.4ft) from the boundary and therefore consider that
the siting and design in that respect is acceptable.

22. A representation received has queried whether the applicant has considered any
alternative sites that would be more sensitive to residents. However it is considered that
the current site utilises an underused courtyard area, infilling a space within the junior
block of the school site which would not compromise playing field, hard or soft play
space or school building that is currently occupied or in regular use.

23. ltis therefore considered that in terms of siting and design the extension is acceptable
and would comply with Policy BE1 and C11 of the Local Plan.

Page 20 D1.10



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

Amenity Issues

24,

25.

26.

As indicated above the proposed extension would sit behind the furthest extent of the
existing established building line and away from the boundary with the residential
properties in Kemp Road. There would be a distance of about 7 metres (22.96ft)
between the facing elevation of the new extension and the boundary line of the school
site. In addition the main facades of the adjoining properties are some 26 metres (85.3ft)
from this boundary line. There is also a rear access to these properties between the
school boundary and garden boundaries of these properties. Furthermore there is a
wide beech hedge about 3 metres high (9.8ft) on the school boundary, which in my view
provides a substantial screen between the school and adjoining residential properties.

Objections to the application have been received on the grounds of loss of amenity as a
result of this extension. In terms of loss of privacy the two windows in the elevation
facing the rear gardens of the properties in Kemp Road are at high level, which would
restrict views out of (and into) the classroom. This combined with the existing hedge
screening and separation distances of about 33 metres (108.26ft), which is in excess of
the widely recognised minimum separation distance of 21 metres (68.89ft) for house to
house windows of habitable rooms, would ensure adequate privacy. Whilst the hedge
would provide less of a screen in the winter months, it is considered that the minor infill
would be viewed against, and as part of, the existing established elevation of the school,
and its impact would be considered minimal.

The use of the new path could possibly result in a slight increase in noise as children
walk along it (although it is intended to serve the fire exits of the new classroom and
adjacent classroom), but it would be a minimal increase in relation to the existing school
and is unlikely to be of such a scale that any overriding harm to the amenity of the
occupiers of adjoining properties could be demonstrated.

Travel and Transport

27.

28.

The proposed extension is not required to accommodate any additional children at the
school, and the applicants have confirmed that there will be no increase in the school
roll or staff numbers. As a result there would be no additional impact on the existing
parking and traffic situation associated with the School as a result of this proposal, and
the Highways and Transportation Officer has confirmed that they have no objection to
the application.

The objections received demonstrate that there is an existing problem with the amount
of school traffic in the surrounding area at drop off and pick up times, and the School
also acknowledge this in their School Travel Plan. However, as this proposal does not
increase the staff or pupil numbers there would be no reason to refuse the scheme on
highway grounds.

Other Matters

Construction matters

29.

Given that there are neighbouring residential properties, should planning permission be
granted it would, in my view, be appropriate to impose a condition restricting hours of
construction to protect residential amenity. | would suggest that works should be
undertaken only between the hours of 0800 and 1800 Monday to Friday and between

Page 21 D1.11



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

30.

31.

the hours of 0900 and 1300 on Saturdays, with no operations on Sundays and bank
holidays. It is also good practice on school sites for contractors to be required under the
terms of their contract to manage construction traffic/deliveries to minimise conflict with
traffic and pedestrians at the beginning and end of the school day.

Various other construction and refurbishment works have taken place on the school site
during the time the application was submitted including the replacement of an internal
glazed wall with a solid partition, the replacement of floor tiles in the hall adjacent to the
classroom, the replacement of a fire exit door that does not meet current regulations and
external works being carried out to repair broken flagstone and the clearing of
overgrown vegetation on the courtyard space of the proposed extension.

Although these works might be perceived as prejudicing the outcome of the infill
extension | remain satisfied that none of the works which have taken place in the hall
and classrooms adjacent to the proposed extension and on the site of the extension
itself require planning consent in relation to this application.

Loss of trees

32.

33.

Two of the letters of objection received drew attention to the fact that a tree had been
removed from the proposed site of the infill extension prior to planning permission being
obtained. They suggest that the tree removal should have been considered in
conjunction with the application for the extension and that the removal of the tree was
done so in order to remove an obstacle in the planning process. It should be noted,
however, that the removal of the tree did not require planning permission itself, and the
tree was not covered by a Tree Protection Order. The School have stated that they
intended to remove it irrespective of whether planning permission was obtained for the
construction of the infill extension, as it was growing within 1 metre of the adjacent
classroom wall.

Whilst there is a policy in both the Canterbury District Local Plan 2006 and the
Canterbury District Local Plan 2014 (Draft) which states that development should be
designed to retain trees that make an important contribution to the amenity of a site and
its surrounding area, and ideally it would have been better to consider the tree as part of
the application process, the tree has now been removed and cannot be reinstated.
However, a condition could be imposed which requires the School to plant a
replacement tree in a more appropriate location, in order to address the loss of the
original tree.

Conclusion

34.

In my view, the development would not give rise to any significant material harm and is
in accordance with the general aims and objectives of the relevant Development Plan
Policies, as well as the National Planning Policy Framework. In my view there are no
material planning considerations that indicate that the conclusion should be made
otherwise. | therefore recommend that planning permission be granted subject to
appropriate conditions.

Page 22 D1.12



Item D1

Infill classroom extension, Swalecliffe Junior School, Whitstable
CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016)

Recommendation

35. | RECOMMEND that PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO the imposition of
conditions covering (amongst other matters) the following:

The standard 5 year time limit;

The development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

Hours of working during construction and demolition to be restricted between 0800
and 1800 Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0900 and 1300 on Saturdays,
with no operation on Sundays and bank holidays;

Construction traffic/deliveries to minimise conflict with traffic and pedestrians at the
beginning and end of the school day.

The provision of a replacement tree within the first available planting season
following the granting of permission.

| Case Officer: Francis Carpenter Tel. no: 03000 410842

| Background Documents: see section heading

Page 23 D1.13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item D2
Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and
parking area for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne
Community College, Swanstree Avenue, Sittingbourne-

SW/16/504626 (KCC/SW/0095/2016)
|

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 19
October 2016.

Application by Kent County Council for new build extensions to form additional classrooms
with new access and parking area for coach and taxi drop off and hard and soft landscaping
improvements throughout site — Sittingbourne Community College, Swanstree Avenue,
Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 4NL. (Ref: KCC/SW/0095/2016 and SW/16/504626)

Recommendation: The application be referred to the Secretary of State for Communities and
Local Government and subject to his decision planning permission to be granted, subject to
conditions.

Local Members: Mr Burgess & Mr Truelove Classification: Unrestricted

Site

1. Sittingbourne Community College is situated to the south-eastern edge of Sittingbourne
and is adjacent to the A2, Canterbury Road, which forms the northern boundary of the
school site. To the east and south of the school site is open farmland and there are some
residential gardens that back onto the site to the south west and the north east. The west
boundary, which provides the site frontage and entrance to the school, lies adjacent to
Swanstree Avenue with existing residential houses immediately opposite. Please refer to
the site location plan.

2. The school site is large and elongated across 850 metres. Within the site the main built-
form is centralised, with existing sports fields to the north and south and multi-use courts
located on its east side. In terms of topography the site slopes progressively from the
southern boundary to the centre, where onwards to the north the site stays relatively
level. The school buildings are a mixture of one and two storey buildings and most are
flat roofed structures with roof lights. The use of external materials varies across the
structures.

3. Access to the site is via Swanstree Avenue, which is also shared by the neighbouring
school, Meadowfield School, which is located to the north of Sittingbourne Community
College. Due to the close proximity of these two schools, Swanstree Avenue is a
frequent point of congestion particularly at school drop off and pick up times, with buses
and taxis obstructing the entrance to the school and backing up into Swanstree Avenue
as there is not enough internal space to hold all the buses/coaches and taxis.

4. The school has 152 car parking spaces in total. 126 spaces are for staff, 17 spaces are
for visitors and 5 spaces are for mobility impaired drivers. The school also has 4 mini bus
parking spaces.

Page 25
D2.1



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Site Location Plan

: - G/ 7 ¢ S 805 =
=4 CE g YOPDRERS / P Lo SC"D
) b | < Vo
- . ISRle 7 O
CLoggoi | : IO — -

_ RERBL & /2 . . =
3 CRETTRURY po~ SCANgE 1 7 > S | ¢
o, A nipeshill 3
NN _ Roap .

Swanstree

Lodge
ectory
ing Field w
2 AT o T r7 Meadowfield

School

[
Bapchild
Court
‘I‘_;I II‘J'.’ \\J\- :
The
Studio
3 -\ Saies G
\\“?G -o“-"v' "
5 - ;
o i Playing
s @ Fleld
-3
da
KEY
[] school Boundary
i I}
© Crown Copyright and database right 2016,
Metres Ordnance Survey 100019238
0 50 100 200 300 400 500

Page 26
D2.2



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Site Location Plan

I
A [21,10.2015 | UpsatesIn line whn Satellte Imagery and shte vl report

balleypartnership | ste Losaton Pian
CONSULTANTS

SGNSTRUCTION AN PROPERTY 1 Profect Drewn Chacst Saale
worw bai ip.co.uk itingbourne Community College SGIBP DV 1/2500 @ A3
REPLY TO Swanstree Avenue Dale Isave Stats
BRISTOL 01179474380 O Kent ME10 4NL 04,00,15 NIA
EXETER o139z 433241 O
PLYMOUTH 01752220250 O e ot County G I Draving No, B A DRAS10007
SEVENOAKS 01732885835 [X) ent County Councl S
TRUROD o187z 61686 0 SCC-BPXX-DRA G100 Revtaon -

3 g sheet

Page 27
D2.3



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Proposed site plan

I - Existing Bukings.

TOTAL SITE AREA —
=157, 237"
APPLICATION SITE BOUNDARY s
= 157 237

ROTES:

Trees within the sits baundary re 1o bo cesignated
for protection. miccation or remaval futher io
scquitien the pending arborcutural survey,

StEngboume
Swarstiee Avenus
Kent ME 10 4NL.

Proposed Sie Flan

Page 28
D2.4



Item D2

W 0001 YOS TYEA

L aur - - [ s _ g

Lih
g ooy Mo uopenaiz saM ion ¥

a3

diysseupedKajeq

— — ——

N T a4 s e LA st oy s
i o s 45 s S 5

v ye . Uy
100 2 - s e
LALLM P R T

e e e s A 1 e
i
b g o i e

SR IR TU

s
S | P S T, 8 e - S § S MY 1L
.

I
PSR N g ) e ) B S S g
s

¥ g .65 s | 5 ks S e
Y L AT g G ) 8 ol S 98

.
D i R
SRy o g B v

i 1) Bl .

reeea ) v Wy o el 0 Y e ML)y

UonEA[3 15E3 YHON

Proposed elevation of Amadeus Block

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

SW/16/504626

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area

U
PR i e e WIS, 1 i g Dt
A 3 1y i e P e ey s

T

o b

"
o
- ety g B S ) PR T
s - v e ey
2

P e B 4T ) e, T TR

LEN"

| .
I Ll .T__.__.___... .__.___.:.”ﬁTP._

&: m : @ ®

ey e

e e e TR

D2.5

Page 29




Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

SW/16/504626

Roof Plan and 3D Images — Amadeus Block

THOOS ¥ BOXX 10 JB 205

——— [——

diysseupedAafeq

T e i 3 e g g

Jeat P s

o] R A i
A et g ARy 1,

4 L P TR A o b

1, A e s ) ey

. Bt A | P g g

Pk 1t e g o gt ot . Atk T

f T+ A ——
e T e o o 4 BBt
s o s | ot o g 1)

iy Ao st i A S S P

e e e TS

z-maip euiang &

- maip jeiang &

(B

Page 30

D2.6



Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Proposed floor plan —Amadeus Block

| s |
T = Lol
. E ~; [ ig i
[HEZE § 11 .
.1; E : 3 . | 8 i—§-
g - 5 iE
o 2| % N
i 23 i Eggé g _g-‘—:!g-i!g
iy| o= 2 i .
ill m©: %‘E: g :% LE gl lb%
H O :unzEstE 2 PR
i
J
: 1 i B ol 3
v =
B3
ERE
I H
E
e
S|
é:
<
G-
D- i -
H
g
| | 3
&
g
£l
SB
¢ ¢
»é~. -
: i
[

Page 31
D2.7



Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
New 3 storey classroom block

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

SW/16/504626

w2
m
)

i L A
UofEAs|3 15aM Yinog

i
@l

b

i

40 i) e

L
L]

]
]

% i Am. -V o

D2.8

Page 32




Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
Ground and first floor plans — Proposed 3 storey classroom block

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

SW/16/504626

SLECRE L T o4 I

e —

— @ 40014 punaig - 00 - ueld ¥9

Mo, J0pLAIOD GE feusal T

o] witd
IRIE pUnai e - uonrddy Seuung

FOI Wwoor e Aaig ¢ My

”_..__ m
100415414 - |0 - UBld WD -

WaiA g jeweneg L

D2.9

Page 33




Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
Second floor and roof plans — Proposed 3 storey classroom block

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

SW/16/504626

:mt Mmm Wmﬁ _.| _‘.Qﬂ__-_{u..!_ﬂ; L .. .|l..t
L it et 760]4 puBIeS - 20 - UEld yO -+

O oo

0

m_ .
INNNENN

B Pt it 4 ot ¢ i et fy

o e x
o T e . OO0 w 00
o T T @ | = . K _ v

i & P I N | [

D2.10

Page 34




Item D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
Proposed coach and taxi parking area

for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

SW/16/504626

S i f =
e B B | JN.,#.;
== e = ! 7
__
Uy Kpnog) e |
- ____
(90 9 wos) /
ENIO, JLIST PR o |
N D30 B0 /
Y ARG
i —
a —-—— e s
= —— v
o — P
a s ens s
w— " wuma
e
diysiaupedhapeq
= T e
RN et
—— T
L —
e et e stem - | 4 e e TR B
i pnc nmen ~
i e e b SR —

sy

D2.11

Page 35




SW/16/504626

Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -

Drawing showing a 5v5 and a 7v7 size football pitch

Addendum to Playing Field Policy Statement
Extension of Sittingbourne Community College
Swantree Avenue, Sictingbourne, Kent

8 Track nunning

Page 36

D2.12



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Background

5.

Planning permission is sought for the proposed expansion of Sittingbourne Community
College in order to make better use of the site and to provide additional facilities. The
proposed development forms part of Kent County Council's Basic Need Expansion
Programme. Due to changing demographics in the area, with an increasing birth rate
and immigration, there is increased demand for secondary school places. The Kent
Commissioning Plan (2015-2020), a five year rolling plan that sets out future plans for
Education Provision across all types and phases of education in Kent, forecasts that
the increased demand for secondary school places shows no sign of reducing over the
forecast period.

Sittingbourne  Community College specialises in performing arts, sports and
engineering. It has Academy status and is part of the Swale Academies Trust. The
pupils are divided into three communities; Chaucer, Darwin and Austen. Austen is the
sixth form community, whilst Darwin and Chaucer encompass the year 7-11 students.
The school currently has 7 forms of entry for Years 7 to 11, which is 1050 pupils. The
school also has a sixth form totalling 225 pupils. In total there are currently 1275
school pupils at this school and around 200 teaching staff.

To meet the demand for school places and associated school accommodation, the
school requires five additional classrooms (in addition to the 8 class bases lost through
the proposed development), four science laboratories, an activity space, a drama
studio, increased administration spaces and an enlarged external dining and learning
resource facilities.

Recent Planning History

8. The most relevant recent site planning history is listed below:

SW/16/504350 Erection of temporary building to provide 2 classrooms.
Granted planning permission on 24 June 2016.

SW/11/395 The erection of a single storey extension to the existing main building
to provide a new speech and language unit within the existing
campus.

Granted planning permission on 6 May 2011.

SwW/11/81 Erection of 1.8m galvanised steel palisade security fencing along two
boundaries to west and south of playing fields, replacement of
emergency access gates within 1.8m palisade paired gates.

Granted planning permission on 4 May 2011.
SW/10/332 Installation of 2no mobile classroom units.
Granted planning permission.
Proposal
9. This planning application has been submitted by Kent County Council’'s Property and

Infrastructure Support and it is proposed to increase the school from a 7 form entry
(FE) to a 9FE for Years 7-11. It is therefore proposed to increase the number of school
pupils in Years 7 -11 by 300 pupils from 1050 to 1350 and stagger the intake over a 5

Page 37
D2.13



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

year period starting from September 2016. The school also has a sixth form which has
225 pupils and there are no plans to expand the sixth form. Therefore there are
currently 1275 pupils at the school and it is proposed to increase this to 1575 in total by
2020.

The school currently employs 125 full time members of staff and 97 part time members
of staff. In total this number equates to approximately 200 full time equivalent
members of staff. It is proposed to employ an additional 20 members of staff.

A planning application (ref. SW/16/504350) was submitted at the same time as this
permanent expansion planning application for two temporary mobile classrooms to
accommodate the additional 60 pupils that were expected to start at this school from
September 2016. Permission was granted under delegated powers on 26 June 2016
and it is intended to use these two mobiles for a period of 2 years and thereafter to be
removed by the end of January 2019.

The proposal comprises of a number of improvements and alterations to the existing
school with the most significant addition being a new three storey building located
centrally within the school site and providing general classroom space. The application
also includes a new two storey extension to provide a drama studio, activity space and
administration offices, as well as a new entrance to the school. All of the proposed
alterations and improvements are located within the existing built form of the school
and would not be prominent from outside of the site. An extended covered area and a
new refuse storage facility is also proposed, with resurfacing of the external areas
throughout the site forming part of the improvement works.

The application also makes provision for the removal of an existing two class modular
block and a bin store as well as some internal alterations to create a suite of science
classrooms and the creation of larger and more useful classroom spaces. The
proposal would also involve the re-planning of the existing car park to improve on-site
parking efficiency, as well as associated landscape works.

Additionally a hard surfaced area to form a new coach and taxi drop off space is
proposed at the northern end of the school site, with an access directly off the A2. This
part of the site is currently grassed but does not form part of the school’s playing pitch
stock. It is proposed to have 11 coach spaces and 6 taxi drop off spaces, with on-site
turning facilities. A new access is proposed from the A2 and coaches and taxis would
enter and exit the site from this new vehicular access point. A pedestrian route is
proposed from the new drop off parking area to the main school, delineated by a
grasscrete path.

Planning Policy Context

15.

The Government Guidance and Development Plan Policies most relevant to the
consideration of this application are summarised below:

() The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the National
Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) set out the Government's planning
policy and guidance for England at the heart of which is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. The guidance is a material consideration for the
determination of planning applications. It does not change the statutory status of
the development plan which remains the starting point for decision making.
However the weight given to development plan policies will depend on their

Page 38
D2.14



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the development plan to the
policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).

In determining applications the NPPF states that local planning authorities should
look for solutions rather than problems, and decision-takers at every level should
seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible.

In terms of delivering sustainable development in relation to this development
proposal, the NPPF guidance and objectives covering the following matters are of
particular relevance:

- Consideration of whether the opportunities for sustainable transport have been
taken up; safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people;
and that development should only be prevented or refused on transport
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe;

- Achieving the requirement for high quality design and a good standard of
amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings;

- The great importance that the Government attaches to ensuring that a sufficient
choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new
communities, and that great weight should be given to the need to create,
expand or alter schools;

- That access to high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and
recreation are important in their contribution to health and well-being, and
therefore that existing open space, sports and recreation facilities should not be
built on unless the loss would be replaced by equivalent or better provision in
terms of quantity and quality.

(i) Policy Statement — Planning for Schools Development (August 2011) sets out
the Government’'s commitment to support the development of State-funded
schools, and their delivery through the planning system.

(i) The adopted Swale Borough Local Plan (Saved Policies) 2008 constitutes the
current adopted development for the Borough and can be summarised as follows:

Policy SP1 Sustainable development:
Proposals should accord with the principles of sustainable
development, and ensure that proper and timely provision is made
for social and community infrastructure.

Policy SP7 Community services and facilities:
Planning policies and development proposals will promote safe
environments and a sense of community by increasing social
networks by providing new services and facilities, and safeguarding
essential and viable services and facilities from harmful changes of
use and development proposals.

Policy C1  Existing and new community services and facilities:
The Borough Council will grant planning permission for new or
improved community services and facilities, and particularly those
that include provision for wider public use.

Page 39
D2.15



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Policy E1L.  General development criteria:
Development proposals should: accord with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise; reflect positively
characteristics and features of the site and surroundings; and protect
and enhance the natural and built environments.

Policy E1I0 Trees and hedges:
Development proposals should protect and retain trees as far as
possible and provide new tree planting to maintain and enhance the
character of the locality.

Policy E19 Design quality and distinctiveness:
Development proposals should be of high quality design and respond
positively to design criteria.

Policy T1  Safe access to new development:
Where appropriate the Borough Council will require the submission
of a comprehensive Transport Assessment and Travel Plan with
planning applications.

Policy T3  Vehicle parking for new development:
Development will only be permitted if appropriate vehicle parking is
provided, in accordance with the adopted KCC Parking Standards

Policy T4  Cyclists and pedestrians:
New development proposals should have regard to the needs and
safety of cyclists and pedestrians, including the disabled, and cycle
parking facilities should be provided in a convenient, secure and safe
location.

Policy T5 Public transport:
Where appropriate the Borough Council will expect the submission of
a Travel Plan as part of a Transport Assessment.

(iv) The draft Bearing Fruits 2031: The Swale Borough Local Plan Main
Modifications (June 2016):

Policy DM6 Managing transport demand and impact:

Development generating a significant amount of transport
movements will require a Transport Assessment (including a Travel
Plan). Priority is given to the needs of pedestrians and cyclists,
including the disabled, through the provision of safe routes which
minimise cyclist/pedestrian and traffic conflict within the site and
which connect to local services and facilities, with safe and efficient
delivery of goods and supplies and access for emergency and utility
vehicles.

Policy DM7 Vehicle parking:
Until a Supplementary Planning Document can be adopted, the
Borough Council will continue to apply extant Kent County Council
vehicle parking standards to new development proposals.

Page 40
D2.16



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

Policy DM14 General development criteria:

All development proposals should accord with the policies and
proposals of the Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise, respond positively to meeting the challenge of climate
change, reflect the positive characteristics and features of the site
and locality, conserve and enhance the natural and/or built
environments, be both well sited and of a scale, design, appearance
and detail that is appropriate to the location, and cause no significant
harm to amenity and other sensitive uses or areas. Development
proposals shall also meet a high standard of landscaping, and
provide safe vehicular access, with convenient routes and facilities
for pedestrians and cyclists and parking and servicing facilities in
accordance with the County Council’s standards.

Policy DM19 Sustainable design and construction:

Development proposals will include measures to address and adapt
to climate change in accordance with national planning policy and
where appropriate, will incorporate items such as use of materials
and construction techniques which increase energy efficiency and
thermal performance; reduce carbon emissions in new development;
promotion of waste reduction; design of buildings which will be
adaptable to change and reuse over the long term, and a
demonstration of a contribution to the network of green infrastructure
and biodiversity. All development proposals shall include measures
to address climate change, using materials and construction
techniques which increase energy efficiency, reduce waste and
reduce carbon emission, and make efficient use of water resources.
All new non-residential developments shall aim to achieve BREEAM
‘good’ standard or equivalent, and all new non-residential
developments over 1,000 sg m gross floor area should aim to
achieve the BREEAM *“Very Good” standard or equivalent as a
minimum.

Consultations

16. Swale Borough Council: Raises no objection to the planning application, subject to
a landscape condition.

Bapchild Parish Council: Has ho comment to make.

Kent County Council Highways and Transportation: Raises no objection to the
application and comments as follows:

“The application documents include drawings to show off-site highway works to provide
a ghost right turn lane for the proposed new access. | am satisfied that the details are
acceptable to demonstrate that the principle of the highway works can be achieved
within the highway land available, and would be able to be progressed through to
detailed design as part of the required Section 278 Agreement process. The
submission was accompanied by a Stage 1 Road Safety, complete with Designers
Response and subsequent Audit Team’s comments and | agree that the minor
amendments suggested by the Audit Team process can be considered during the

detailed design stage. | am satisfied that parking provision within the site is
appropriate for the proposed staff numbers. Consequently, | have no objections to the
Page 41

D2.17



Item D2
Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

proposals in respect of highway matters subject to the conditions covering matters
such as a Construction Management Plan; measures to prevent mud on the highway;
for the coach and taxi parking area to be available for use for the use intended and for
a detailed design of the scheme being progressed and implemented accordingly.”

County Ecology Officer: Raises no objection subject to the habitat area being
retained and enhanced.

School Travel Planner: Raises no objection subject to an updated School Travel
Plan being conditioned and for the School to submit this via the Jambusters website.

Sport England: Raises objection to the proposed coach and taxi drop off area of the
planning application for the following reasons;

“The new access and parking area for coach and taxi drop off area would appear to be
sited on an existing area of playing field. Locating these aspects of the proposed
development on the existing playing field would prejudice the use of the playing field.

In the light of the above, Sport England objects to these aspects of the proposed
application because they are not considered to accord with any of the exceptions to
Sport England’s Playing Field Policy or with Paragraph 74 of the NPPF.”

Furthermore, Sport England raises no objection to the proposed various extensions to
form the additional classrooms, as they are proposed to be located on land that is
incapable of forming, or forming part of a playing pitch, and would not result in the loss,
or inability to make use of any playing pitch.

Environment Agency:. Raises no objection to the planning application, subject to
conditions and informatives to control potential risks from ground contamination and
infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground, and to ensure no piling or other
foundations using penetrative methods are incorporated without permission.

Local Member

17. The local County Members, Mr Lee Burgess and Mr Roger Truelove, as well as
adjoining County Members, Mr Mike Baldock and Mr Andrew Bowles, were notified of
the application on 23 May 2016.

Publicity

18. The application was advertised by the posting of site notices, and the notification of
341 neighbours.

Representations

19. Two letters of representation have been received, objecting to the application. The
main points of the objection can be summarised as follows:

e There is no parking provision for the endless stream of cars that block Swanstree
Avenue.
e Cars are parked on grass verges, across driveways and backed up around cul-de-
sacs, which makes it impossible at times to get on our own driveways.
e Put more parking within the school so residents have a clear road once again.
Page 42
D2.18



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

¢ Questions whether the right choice been made to locate these extra school places

at the Sittingbourne Community College?

o Due to the traffic queues on the A2 on the approach to the Swanstree Avenue traffic

lights and buses would have to cross this queue to access the bus/taxi drop off
area.

e There is a substantial amount of pedestrian and bicycle traffic on the A2 pavement

by the bus/taxi drop off area.

o The location of the bus/taxi drop off area removes the ‘green’ separation between

the edge of Sittingbourne and Bapchild.

Discussion

20.

21.

In considering this proposal regard must be had to Development Plan Policies outlined
in paragraph (15) above. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004) states that applications must be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore, this
proposal needs to be considered in the context of Development Plan Policies,
Government Guidance, including the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF),
Planning Policy Statement for Schools Development and other material planning
considerations arising from consultation and publicity.

This application has been reported for determination by the Planning Applications
Committee following the receipt of objections from two local residents and Sport
England. Sport England’s objection is to the loss of playing field and the two neighbour
objections are made on traffic grounds, local congestion and lack of parking around the
school site.

Need

22.

23.

As outlined in paragraph 15 of this report, great emphasis is placed within planning
policy generally, specifically paragraph 72 of the NPPF, on the need to ensure a
sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs to existing and new
communities. The NPPF states that Planning Authorities should take a proactive,
positive and collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to development
that will widen choice in education. The NPPF further states that Planning Authorities
should give great weight to the need to create expand or alter schools. The Policy
Statement — Planning for Schools Development (15 August 2011) further sets out the
Government’s commitment to support the development of state funded schools and
their delivery through the planning system.

The applicant has identified growth in the demand for secondary school places within
the Swale area, and a future need which will be outstripped by demand unless
additional places are provided. Support for the provision of school places is heavily
embedded in the NPPF and local planning policy, and | consider that the need for the
development should be given significant weight in this instance.

Impact upon playing field

24.

Sport England has objected to the planning application on grounds that the proposed
development would appear to be sited on an existing area of playing field and would
prejudice the use of the playing field and does not therefore accord with the exceptions
to Sport England’s Playing Field Policy. It is Sport England’s policy to oppose any

planning application which would rgsult i2 the loss of playing field land unless it is
age

D2.19



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

satisfied that the application meets with one or more of five specific exceptions. The
gist of these exceptions are incorporated within paragraph 74 of the Government's
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Sport England also considers that the application does not accord with the exceptions
of paragraph 74 of the NPPF, which states:

Existing open spaces, sports and recreational buildings and land, including playing
fields, should not be built on unless:

e an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space,

buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or

e the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent

or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable locations; or

o the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the needs for

which clearly outweigh the loss.

Much of the proposed development is located within the central area of the site
amongst the existing built form and has no impact upon the playing fields located
within the school site. However the proposed coach and taxi drop off area is located
on an area of the site that is currently grassed and part of the school's grounds. This
area is not currently used by the school as a playing field due to the close proximity of
the A2. There are also existing grass playing pitches and an existing artificial playing
surface within the site boundary. These adequately meet the schools needs in relation
to the provision of playing pitches at the site.

The school currently has a significant number of playing pitches that includes:

5 senior grass football pitches;

2 junior grass football pitches;

1 senior grass rugby pitch;

1 senior all weather artificial football pitch, and
2 seven aside football pitches.

The pitches listed above provide a comprehensive set of playing pitches that
adequately meet the schools playing pitch needs. The quality of the existing provision
of playing pitches is also high, with the site being mostly level and the pitches provide
excellent playing surfaces.

It is also relevant that the Swale Playing Pitch Strategy (Swale PPS) identifies the
Sittingbourne Community College site as having spare football capacity in the Sunday
AM peak period, further supporting the view that there is adequate provision at this
site. The Swale PPS, whilst not yet adopted, is considered to provide carefully
gquantified and documented assessment of current and future needs identified by Sport
England as being necessary to demonstrate over provision.

Whilst Sport England considers that the proposal would result in the loss of playing
field land, they have accepted that this part of the site cannot be used for senior
football due to size limitations. However they believe that it could be used for junior or
mini soccer (5v5 or 7v7) and state that there is a demand for this type of playing pitch
in the Sittingbourne area. Please refer to the drawing on page 12 to see the size of the
marked out pitches as suggested by Sport England.

Page 44
D2.20



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

The larger 7v7 pitch is tight to the boundaries and would be impacted by existing trees
in the north east corner of the site, which are proposed to be retained. These trees
form an important part of the landscaping for the proposed development. They play an
important role within the street scene and make a positive contribution to local visual
amenity. Given the playing pitch provision at the school, it would not be appropriate to
remove these trees in order to accommodate a playing pitch.

The close proximity of the A2 to the immediate north of the site would also present
conflict and harm to highway safety from sports balls potentially leaving the site and
causing a hazard to vehicular traffic. Furthermore the site already provides two 7v7
size football pitches and it is considered that there is an excess of provision at the site
for this form of playing pitch.

Whilst the 5v5 pitch could be accommodated in this part of the site, it is considered that
the proximity of the road would also be a significant constraint, due to the potential
danger caused by users of the highway from potential misplaced footballs.
Furthermore, it is also relevant that the area of the site that Sport England consider to
have potential for use as a playing field land is not currently used by the school as a
playing pitch due to the close proximity of the A2 and it is generally accepted by the
school that the close proximity of this road is a severe constraint to the area being used
for any form of outdoor sport.

It could be argued that the proposed coach and taxi drop off site would be located on
an area incapable of being used for marking out playing pitches or part thereof. On
that basis, the proposed development would meet policy exception E3, in that the
development would only affect land incapable of forming a playing pitch or part thereof
and does not adversely affect existing pitch provision on the site.

In my view, this is a relatively small encroachment onto an area that is currently not
used by the School for any form of outdoor sport that has to be balanced against the
need for the development and wider benefits to the community of this educational
facility and the strong policy presumption in favour of new school facilities. The school
currently has generous playing fields and marked out pitches, and this area is deemed
to be located too close to the A2 to be of any sports benefit to the school. | do not
therefore consider there is any basis for a planning objection on the grounds that the
development would lead to an unacceptable loss of playing field that would affect the
ability of the School to use the wider playing field. | am satisfied that an assessment of
the School’s current sporting facilities has been carried out and concluded that the
school has adequate sporting facilities. As such it is considered that the application
would accord with Paragraph 74 of the NPPF and under the circumstances, | would
therefore not raise a planning objection to the proposal on grounds of loss of playing
field.

Transport Issues

35.

This planning application proposes to increase the school from a 7 form entry (FE) to a
9FE for Years 7-11. It is therefore proposed to increase the number of school pupils in
Years 7 -11 by 300 pupils from 1050 to 1350 and stagger the intake over a 5 year
period starting from September 2016. The school also has a sixth form which has 225
pupils and there are no plans to expand the sixth form. Therefore there are currently
1275 pupils at the school and it is proposed to increase this to 1575 in total by 2020. It
is also proposed to increase staff numbers from 200 full time equivalent members of
staff by an additional 20 members of staff.

Page 45
D2.21



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

The application was supported by the submission of a Transport Statement and a
School Travel Plan, which considered the impact the development, would likely to have
on capacity of the existing highway network and the parking demand on the
surrounding streets. Kent Highways has considered both documents and the
calculations of the existing trip attractions and the proposed number of additional
vehicles that are likely to be associated with the proposed increase in pupil and staff
numbers. It has also been noted that a separate coach and taxi drop off area is
proposed as part of this application, which would remove the need for any coaches or
taxis to drop off school pupils in Swanstree Avenue, which is a major source of
congestion in this road due to there not being enough internal space to hold all the
coaches and taxis at this school.

Whilst it is proposed to increase the number of pupils at this school by 300
incrementally over the next 5 years, from the information in the School’s Travel Plan, a
high proportion of the current secondary school pupils arrive at this school by coach or
public transport. In a recent hands-up survey carried out at the school this was shown
to be 37% of the current school pupils. The school is currently serviced by 10
buses/coaches. In terms of taxi numbers an assessment was carried during the last
academic year where there were 16 taxis daily bringing the students to and from
school. The School expects this to be between 18 and 20 in the next academic year.
Most of the students being collected by taxi attend the School's deaf department.

The proposed dedicated parking area would provide 11 coach bays and 6 taxi bays to
the north of the school and via a new access point off the A2. This would therefore
remove the need for any coaches or taxis to use Swanstree Avenue in the future and
would relieve this road of the traffic problems associated with coaches and taxis having
to spill out and park out in Swanstree Avenue to either drop off or collect school pupils.

The proposed new coach and taxi parking area would also provide adequate turning
space within the site and there would be an internal footpath from the school buildings
to this new facility as well as a sheltered waiting area. Staff would continue to be
present on-site to oversee students boarding and disembarking the bus services.

This proposed coach and taxis parking area would only be used during the morning
and afternoon peak and so the number of vehicles needing to access this area would
be very low and relatively infrequent. An assessment has been carried out in terms of
numbers and an origin and destination survey of the vehicles that would be using this
new parking area. Based on information provided by the school, a fair assumption has
been made that the majority of the buses and taxis accessing the proposed parking
area would turn right into the site off the A2. In order to accommodate these right
turning vehicles, it has been considered appropriate to provide a new right turn lane
adjacent to the entrance to the drop off facility.

There is currently sufficient scope to provide a new 35 metre long and 3 metre wide
right turn lane into the proposed new drop-off facility by slightly altering the existing
hatched central road markings. The proposed right turn lane would have storage
capacity for up to two coaches and a taxi at any one time, which is expected to be
more than sufficient to accommodate the demand without causing delay to the
eastbound lane of the A2. The assessment also concluded that the proposed new
right turn lane would result in a slight reduction in the capacity of the existing right turn
only lane at the signal controlled junction of the A2 Canterbury Road and Swanstree
Avenue/Vincent Road. However there would still be an adequate amount of right

Page 46
D2.22



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

42.

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

turning lane remaining for the right turning traffic during the school peak times as not to
have an effect upon the operation of these traffic signals.

An assessment of the traffic lights and how the proposed right turn facility could affect
the operation of these lights has been undertaken by an external highway consultant
and checked over by the County’s Highway Engineer. There has also been an Outline
Safety Audit undertaken for the proposed scheme. Both assessments have been
accepted by the County’s Highway Engineer as being acceptable subject to a few
minor alterations identified from the Outline Safety Audit that would need to be
incorporated into the Detailed Design stage of the highway scheme. On this basis,
Kent Highways have raised no objection to this element of the planning application.

The objection raised by a local resident regarding coaches not being able to cross the
gueue of traffic in the westbound direction, would be addressed through the provision
of a dedicated right turn lane for the school traffic to the new coach and taxi parking
area. Traffic would also get used to there being a new access point to the school for
coaches and taxis and would anticipate this movement across the A2.

Through the information provided by the external highway consultant and the
assessment carried out by the County’s Highway Engineer, the proposed site layout
and internal circulation space is considered satisfactory and would not give rise to
conditions prejudicial to highway safety or the free flow of traffic on the adjoining
highway. In my view, | consider the design and layout of the proposed right turning
lane and coach and taxi drop off area to be acceptable and subject to a detailed design
of the highway scheme being undertaken, | would not therefore raise a planning
objection on this matter.

Concern regarding the traffic created by the school and the lack of parking within the
school site was also raised by a local resident. The school currently has 152 parking
spaces in total, of which 126 are designated as staff parking spaces. A parking survey
within the school site was undertaken as part of this planning application submission.
The observed peak demand for parking within the school grounds was that 115 parking
spaces were occupied. Based on this survey, this demonstrates that there was a
surplus of 28 parking spaces within the school site. The predicted additional demand
for parking generated by staff is 17 parking spaces. The applicant concluded that this
proposal could be absorbed by the current on-site parking provision.

The proposal for the expansion of Sittingbourne Community College does not therefore
include any additional off-street parking. As part of this proposal, Car Park 4 within the
school would be redesigned to accommodate a total of 28 standard parking spaces
and 3 disabled parking spaces. This would result in the loss of 9 parking spaces within
the school site. However the applicant has concluded that all the parking demand is
expected to be adequately accommodated within the site as there is sufficient spare
parking capacity already. Kent Highways is satisfied that parking provision within the
school site is appropriate for the proposed staff numbers and has raised no objection
to this application on parking grounds.

On-street parking opportunities within the vicinity of the site have been considered as
part of the planning application. To assess the current level of on-street parking in
Swanstree Avenue and other surrounding roads nearby the school site, a parking
survey was undertaken. Kerb side parking within a 200 metre distance of the schools
access points has been surveyed, which is around a 2.5 minute walk. In total the

Page 47
D2.23



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

48.

49.

50.

parking survey demonstrated that there are 130 parking opportunities within the
parking study area, and in areas where there are no current parking restrictions.

Together with the proposal to remove all coaches and taxis associated with the school
from Swanstree Avenue, and adequate parking spaces currently within the school site
to accommodate the current and proposed members of staff, this demonstrated that
there are free parking spaces within the study area and that not all the parking in this
area can be assumed to be associated with this school.

Furthermore the school currently has no on-site parking facilities for parents and so all
parents that drive to school have to park on the public highway. From the information
in the School Travel Plan, only about 20% of the current school pupils are driven to
school. Whilst it is accepted by Kent Highways that there may be some additional
congestion in the area at school start and finish times, these are of short duration and
only during term times.

In conclusion, it will be noted that the school is proposing to remove the traffic
congestion caused by the coaches and taxis that currently access this site via the
current entrance in Swanstree Avenue. The policy guidance given in NPPF Paragraph
32 states among other things that development should not be refused on transport
grounds unless the cumulative impact is severe. | do not consider that to be the case
in this instance. The introduction of mitigating measures to reduce that impact, as
discussed above, makes the application acceptable in highway terms. Under the
circumstances, | would therefore not raise a planning objection to the proposal on
highway grounds.

Design and layout

51.

52.

53.

Development Plan Policies promote high quality design, sustainable development and
significant improvements to the built environment. The proposed new buildings would
be two and three storey buildings which would complement the existing one and two
storey buildings. The locations of the new buildings have been proposed in order to
minimise any external visual impact, with designs that are complementary and
subordinate to the existing locations. They would integrate acceptability within that site
with no adverse local amenity impacts.

The proposed new coach and taxi parking area would not affect the general
appearance of the location as the openness of this area would be maintained, and
would not in my view result in the loss of the ‘green’ separation between Sittingbourne
and Bapchild. As this parking area would only be used during the morning drop-off
and afternoon pick-up times, the rest of the time, this area would be clear of parking.
Two trees would have to be removed in this location and only a short section of hedge
would have to be removed to create a new vehicular entrance to this site. In addition,
it is proposed to plant some additional trees to provide further screening of the parking
area. | am also satisfied that there sufficient separation of the parking area from the
residential property to the east such that there would be no significant adverse amenity
impact.

Members will note that no objection has been received to the proposed location or
design of the various extensions to the school. However in order to control the
development and to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the proposed development,
| consider that final details of all materials to be used externally and details of the
proposed landscaping should be submitted pursuant to condition, should permission

Page 48
D2.24



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

be granted. Subject to the imposition of these conditions, | consider that the design
and layout of the proposed development to be acceptable and | would therefore not
raise a planning objection on this matter.

Sustainability

54.

55.

The emerging Bearing Fruits 2031: The Swale Borough Local Plan Main Modifications
(June 2016), Policy DM19 states that all new non-residential development over
1000sgm gross floor area should achieve a BREEAM ‘Very Good' standard, or
equivalent. The applicant advises that the building has been designed to meet the
principles of a BREEAM rating of ‘very good’, and that the building design would meet,
and exceed, the energy calculations required under Building Regulations Part L 2013.
The development has been designed to be as sustainable as practicable, with passive
solar design to promote natural daylighting, and passive ventilation, enabling the
building to exchange warm stale air for cool fresh air. South facing briese soleil would
also provide shading and reduce summer over-heating. In addition, measures such as
eco-flush toilets are proposed to minimise water resource use, and external materials
have high sustainable credentials in terms of sourcing and performance.

Further, although not necessarily required to meet energy efficiency targets and
building regulation requirements, given the height an orientation of the building, the
applicant has included an array of PV panels within the scheme in this instance, with
an indicative area marked on the roof plan. The applicant advises that the array would
offset carbon emissions from the building emission rate by a further 11% in this
instance. Ongoing management of the development would also ensure that users of
the building understand the sustainable design principles and technologies
incorporated into the building, and that the school continue to manage and use those
efficiently. Minimisation of waste and recycling would also be encouraged. In
considering the sustainable design credentials of the proposed building, including the
provision of an array of PVs, | am of the opinion that the building design is sustainable
and accords with the underlying principles of relevant Development Plan Policies.

Conclusion

56.

57.

In summary the proposal seeks to provide additional secondary school places to meet
local need and is in accordance with planning policy to support the improvement of
local infrastructure, as set out in the Swale Borough Local Plan (Saved Policies); the
draft Swale Borough Local Plan “Bearing Fruits”; the NPPF and the Policy Statement —
Planning for Schools Development. | consider that, subject to the imposition of
appropriate planning conditions, the proposed development constitutes sustainable
development and provides an appropriate level of new off-street parking facilities
including for coaches and taxis. Kent Highways are satisfied that this proposal is
acceptable in highway terms, subject to the imposition of conditions. In addition weight
should also be given to the NPPF’s clear policy support for ensuring that a sufficient
choice of school places be available to meet the needs of existing and new
communities, and the need to create, expand or alter school. In my view, the
development would not give rise to any significant material harm and is in accordance
with the general aims and objectives of the relevant Development Plan Policies, as well
as the National Planning Policy Framework. | do not consider there are any material
planning considerations that indicate that the conclusion should be made otherwise.

However given the Sport England objection, should Members be minded to grant
permission, the County Planning Authority is required to consult the Secretary of State
Page 49
D2.25



Iltem D2

Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area
for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College -
SW/16/504626

for Communities and Local Government at the National Planning Casework Unit and
not grant planning permission until the Secretary of State has first had an opportunity
to consider the application. The Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England)
Direction 2009, requires that the Authority may only proceed to determine an
application once the Secretary of State has had an opportunity to consider whether or
not to call in the application for his own determination, subject to his decision |
recommend permission be granted subject to appropriate conditions.

Recommendation

58. | RECOMMEND that the application BE REFERRED to the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government and SUBJECT TO his decision, PERMISSION
BE GRANTED, SUBJECT TO the imposition of conditions covering (amongst other
matters) the following:

The standard 5 year time limit;

The development carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

The submission of details of all materials to be used externally;

A scheme of soft and hard landscaping and its implementation and maintenance;
Measures to protect trees to be retained;

No tree removal during the bird breeding season;

The habitat area being retained and a scheme of enhancement being agreed and
implemented;

Details of any external lighting to be provided;

Submission of details to deal with the potential risks associated with ground
contamination;

Submission of a verification report;

No infiltration of the surface water drainage;

No piling or any other foundations using penetrative methods to be used;

Provision and permanent retention of new coach and taxis parking area prior to the
occupation of the proposed development;

Visibility splays to be provided as approved and to be maintained,;

Hours of working during construction to be restricted to between the hours of 0800
and 1800 Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0900 and 1300 on Saturdays,
with no operations on Sundays and Bank Holidays;

Measures to prevent mud and debris being taken onto the public highway;

The submission of a construction management plan, including lorry routing, access,
parking and circulation within the site for contractors and other vehicles related to
construction operations;

A detailed design of the highway scheme to be undertaken and implemented
accordingly;

The submission of a revised School Travel Plan, via the Jambusters website and be
the placed on the school's website and for the Travel Plan to be reviewed annually.

Case officer — Lidia Cook 03000 413353

Background documents - See Section heading

Page 50
D2.26



Agenda Item E1

E1 COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS PURSUANT
PERMITTED/APPROVED/REFUSED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS -
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents - The deposited documents.

AS/15/206/R44 Request for partial discharge of condition 44 (written specification and
timetable for a program of archaeological work) of planning
permission AS/15/206.

Charing Quarry/Burleigh Farm, Hook Lane, Charing, Ashford
Decision: Approved

SW/15/509603/R9  Details pursuant to condition (9) - Wintering Bird Impact Assessment
of planning permission SW/15/509603.
Land adjacent to Crown Quay Lane, Sittingbourne
Decision: Approved

E2 COUNTY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS
PURSUANT PERMITTED/APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents — The deposited documents.

CA/15/580/R4 Details of a School Travel Plan pursuant to condition (4) of planning
permission CA/15/580.
Hampton Primary School, Fitzgerald Avenue, Herne Bay
Decision: Approved

CA/16/15/R4 & 6 Submission of details of landscaping condition (4) and lighting
condition (6) pursuant to planning permission CA/16/58
Chartham Primary School, Shalmsford Street, Chartham, Canterbury,
Kent, CT4 7QN
Decision: Approved

CA/16/1009 New two storey building to provide classrooms and other facilities for
a one form of entry school expansion.
Spires Academy, Bredlands Lane, Sturry, Canterbury
Decision: Permitted
E.1

Page 51



DA/14/209/RVAR

GR/16/447

MA/15/503462/

RVARA

MA/15/504490/R

MA/16/503410/R8

Details of external materials, car parking and vehicular accesses,
programme of archaeological work, Construction Environmental
Management Plan, Ecological Design Strategy, Landscaping Scheme
and tree protection measures, surface water drainage and
construction management strategy pursuant to conditions 3, 4, 7, 11,
12, 13, 16 and 18 of planning permission DA/14/209.

Knockhall Primary School, Eynsford Road, Greenhithe

Decision: Approved

Single storey new replacement library building, with associated
external landscaping and car parking

Meopham Library, Wrotham Road, Meopham, Gravesend, Kent,
DA13 OAH

Decision: Permitted

Non-material amendment for the relocation of sports pitch to the west
to allow safer gradients to the adjacent landscape and relocation of
habitat area

Land at Langley Park, Sutton Road, Maidstone, Kent

Decision: Approved

Application for a non-material amendment - part removal of reglit
cladding, addition of handrails and mesh infills and extension to stair
enclosure by approximately 1.6m

Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1XQ

Decision: Approved

Partial discharge of Condition 8 (Archaeology) of planning permission
MA/16/503410 in relation to car park works only.

South Borough Primary School, Stagshaw Close, Postley Road,
Maidstone

Decision: Approved

MA/16/503410/RVAR Discharge of conditions 3 (materials), 10 (school travel plan) and 11

SH/16/773

SW/10/1332/RB

SW/16/505321/R4

(landscape details) of planning permission MA/16/503410.

South Borough Primary School, Stagshaw Close, Postley Road,
Maidstone

Decision: Approved

2 Classroom extension with new kitchen area, storage and entrance
for the school.

Elham C of E Primary School, Vicarage Lane, Elham

Decision: Permitted

Application for a non-material amendement; revised land drainage
strategy, and resulting level changes of the community area to the
front of the Academy building.

Isle of Sheppey Academy West, Marine Parade, Sheerness

Decision: Approved

Details of Construction Management Plan pursuant to condition (4) of
SW/16/505321.

Meadowfield School, Swanstree Avenue, Sittingbourne

Decision: Approved

E.2
Page 52



SW/16/506378

TH/15/294/
R19 & 24

TH/15/294/RVAR

TH/15/845/R

TH/15/845/R3
13 & 16

TH/16/1085

TM/15/3954/
R5,6 &8

TM/15/3954
/R13,16 & 23

The application is for the construction of new extensions to the
existing school. The works include some elevational changes to some
existing windows associated with the extensions

Minster In Sheppey Primary School, Brecon Chase, Minster On Sea,
Sheerness, Kent, ME12 2HX

Decision: Permitted

Details of contamination and surface water drainage pursuant to
conditions 19 & 24 of planning permission TH/15/294

Land at St George's C of E Foundation School, Westwood Road,
Broadstairs, Kent, CT10 2LH

Decision: Approved

Details pursuant to conditions (3) - Materials, (4) - School Travel Plan,
(6) - Construction Management Plan, (13) - Soft Landscape, (15) -
Protection of trees during construction, (26) - Biodiversity Method
Statement and (27) - Construction Environmental Management Plan,
of planning permission TH/15/294

Land at St George's C of E Foundation School, Westwood Road,
Broadstairs, Kent, CT10 2LH

Decision: Approved

Application for a non-material amendment for the removal of dormers
and rooflight and addition of wind catchers to main roof and hall roof,
in addition to minor fenestration changes

Birchington Primary School, Park Lane, Birchington

Decision: Approved

Details of all materials to be used externally; the new access point off
of Park Lane and a Construction Management Strategy, pursuant to
conditions (3), (13) and (16) of planning permission TH/15/845
Birchington Primary School, Park Lane, Birchington, Kent, CT7 0OAS
Decision: Approved

Renewal of planning permission for the mobile classroom unit used by
the Family Liaison Officer (Permission is requested until 31st August
2019 to coincide with other temporary permissions at this site).
Garlinge Primary School and Nursery, Westfield Road, Margate
Decision: Permitted

Details of all materials to be used externally, external lighting and a
scheme of landscaping pursuant to conditions (5), (6) & (8) of
planning permission TM/15/3954.

Land at Upper Haysden Lane, Tonbridge

Decision: Approved

Details of; a detailed surface water drainage scheme, the proposed
means of foul and surface water sewerage disposal and a
construction management strategy pursuant to conditions 13, 16 and
23 of planning application TM/15/3954

Land at Upper Haysden Lane, Tonbridge, Kent, TN11 8AA

Decision: Approved

E.3

Page 53



TM/15/121/R3 Details of the colour finish and landscaping scheme regarding the

storage containers on site pursuant to condition 3 of planning
permission TM/15/121

Land off Lower Haysden Lane, Tonbridge, Kent

Decision: Approved

TW/16/6045 Relocate two classroom modular building with associated toilets and

E3

store from The Ridgewaye Centre to The Pagoda Centre and an
additional one classroom modular building.

Pagoda Centre, Floyd Close, Tunbridge Wells

Decision: Approved

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2011 - SCREENING OPINIONS
ADOPTED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

Background Documents —

(a)

The deposited documents.
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.
DETR Circular 02/99 — Environmental Impact Assessment.

Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does not constitute
EIA development and the development proposal does not need to be accompanied
by an Environmental Statement:-

KCC/TM/0251/2016 Section 73 application to vary condition (4) and (5) of planning
permission TM/92/358 to increase volume of liquid to be
treated and associated vehicle numbers
Ham Hill Wastewater Treatment Works, Brook Lane,
Snodland, Kent, ME6 5JX

Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does constitute EIA
development and the development proposal does need to be accompanied by an
Environmental Statement:-

None

E.4
Page 54



E4 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2011 - SCOPING OPINIONS ADOPTED
UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

(b) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following scoping opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers.

Background Documents -

° The deposited documents.

° Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.
. DETR Circular 02/99 - Environmental Impact Assessment.

None

E.5

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	A3 Minutes - 14 September 2016
	D1 Proposal CA/16/1822 (KCC/CA/0191/2016) - Infill classroom extension to provide the school with an intervention space at Swalecliffe Junior School, Bridgefield Road, Whitstable; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support
	D2 Proposal SW/16/504626 (KCC/SW/0095/2016) - Two and three storey buildings and new access and parking area for coach and taxi drop-off at Sittingbourne Community College, Swanstree Avenue, Sittingbourne; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support
	E1 County matter applications

